
It is expected that a Quorum of the Personnel Committee, Board of Public Works, and Common Council will be attending this meeting: (although 
it is not expected that any official action of any of those bodies will be taken) 
 

"Menasha is committed to its diverse population. Our Non-English speaking population and those with disabilities are invited to contact the 
Menasha City Clerk at 967-3603 24-hours in advance of the meeting for the City to arrange special accommodations." 
 

CITY OF MENASHA 
BOARD OF APPEALS 

First Floor Conference Rooms 
100 Main Street 

Wednesday, November 1, 2023 
9:30 AM 
AGENDA 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 

 
B. ROLL CALL 

 
C. PUBLIC HEARING 

1. Variance Request – Garage Size Requirement – Akey Property Management – 338 
Nicolet Blvd. (Parcel #3-00522-00), Menasha 

2. Variance Request – Electronic Message Center Sign Area – St. Timothy Lutheran 
Church – 473 Seventh Street (Parcel #1-00530-0), Menasha  
 

D. MINUTES TO APPROVE 
 1. Board of Appeals, 10/10/2023 
 
E. ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

1. Variance Request – Garage Size Requirement – Akey Property Management – 338 
Nicolet Blvd. (Parcel #3-00522-00), Menasha 

1. Variance Request – Electronic Message Center Sign Area – St. Timothy Lutheran 
Church – 473 Seventh Street (Parcel #1-00530-0), Menasha 

 
F. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 
 



Privacy Policy Terms of Service

Contact Us

ORDER DETAILS

Order Number:

LWIX0028536 

External Order #:

9424190 

Order Status:

Approved 

Classi�cation:

Govt Public Notices 

Package:

General Package 

Final Cost:

30.29 

Payment Type:

Account Billed  

User ID:

L0027956 

External User ID:

1012833 

ACCOUNT INFORMATION

City Of Menasha

100 Main ST # 200 ATTN: FINANCE

Menasha, WI 54952-3287

920-967-3608 

vneuman@menashawi.gov

City Of Menasha

Contract ID:

TRANSACTION REPORT

Date

October 18, 2023 11:17:47 AM EDT 

Amount:

30.29  

ADDITIONAL OPTIONS

1 Af�davit

SCHEDULE FOR AD NUMBER LWIX00285360

October 23, 2023

Appleton Post Crescent

PREVIEW FOR AD NUMBER LWIX00285360

i-Publish  AdPortal: v2.6®

https://www.gannett.com/privacy-statement/
https://www.gannett.com/terms-of-use/
https://legals.gannettclassifieds.com/legals/wix/static/contact.html


Privacy Policy Terms of Service

Contact Us

ORDER DETAILS

Order Number:

LWIX0028540 

External Order #:

9424192 

Order Status:

Approved 

Classi�cation:

Govt Public Notices 

Package:

General Package 

Final Cost:

31.30 

Payment Type:

Account Billed  

User ID:

L0027956 

External User ID:

1012833 

ACCOUNT INFORMATION

City Of Menasha

100 Main ST # 200 ATTN: FINANCE

Menasha, WI 54952-3287

920-967-3608 

vneuman@menashawi.gov

City Of Menasha

Contract ID:

TRANSACTION REPORT

Date

October 18, 2023 11:23:40 AM EDT 

Amount:

31.30  

ADDITIONAL OPTIONS

1 Af�davit

SCHEDULE FOR AD NUMBER LWIX00285400

October 23, 2023

Appleton Post Crescent

PREVIEW FOR AD NUMBER LWIX00285400

i-Publish  AdPortal: v2.6®

https://www.gannett.com/privacy-statement/
https://www.gannett.com/terms-of-use/
https://legals.gannettclassifieds.com/legals/wix/static/contact.html


 

 
 

CITY OF MENASHA 
BOARD OF APPEALS 

100 MAIN STREET 
OCTOBER 10, 2023 

MINUTES  
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
Meeting called to order by Chairman Galeazzi at 2:31 p.m. 
 

B. ROLL CALL 
PRESENT: Chairman Galeazzi, Member Jungen, Jacobson, Vander Wyst, and Rae-
Othrow, 
ALSO PRESENT: CDD Schroeder, CA Struve, Clerk Neuman and Applicant Asher 
Jacobson; members of the gallery  
 

C. PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Temporary Use Permit Application – Asher Jacobsen – 216 Water Street (Parcel 2-

00008-00) – Mobile Storage 
 

Chairman Galeazzi provided an overview of the temporary use permit application request 
from Applicant Asher Jacobson.  Property owner Asher Jacobson intends to use 216 
Water Street (Parcel 2-00008-00) to house a mobile storage container on the parcel.   
 
Bethanie Gengler, 210 Water Street, Menasha; requested committee to deny the 
application and to enforce city ordinances.  She stated the container was placed on 
property since July 2023.  
 
Carrie & James Halverson, 504 First Street, Menasha; owners of a neighboring property 
also owned by Mr. Jacobson (105 Racine Street, Menasha).  The couple stated the 
applicant caused civil issues with them in the past with fencing, public health concerns, 
and property unkemptness.   
 
Chairman Galeazzi Public Hearing to a close at 2:41 p.m.  She clarified the notice of 
public hearing was required to be sent out to property owners within 100-feet of the 216 
Water Street parcel; other public could refer to the official newspaper announcement. 
 

D. MINUTES TO APPROVE 
1. Board of Appeals, 7/14/2023 
Moved by Member Jungen seconded by Member Vander Wyst to approve the minutes. 
Motion carried on voice vote.   
 

E. ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 
1. Temporary Use Permit Application – Asher Jacobson – 216 Water Street (Parcel 2-

00008-00) – Mobile Storage 
Chairman Galeazzi opened the floor to applicant, Asher Jacobson, to explain the 
reasoning for his permit application:  
 
Per applicant, Asher Jacobson, the container was bought due to his past experiences 
with multiple shipping delays and issues in acquiring project materials to complete 
property renovations.  After receiving notice from City of Menasha’s Community 



City of Menasha – Board of Appeals 
October 10, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 
 

Development Department, Jacobson removed the shipping container from his Racine 
Street project to another home renovation project at 216 Water Street, Menasha.   
 
Mr. Jacobson stated the expectation is to use shipping container to house various 
housing materials (foundation, siding, roofing, doors, windows, wiring, etc.) and 
equipment to serve as a secured location on the property for ease of material access for 
upwards of 24-months. Jacobson also expressed his struggles with various neighbors, 
but also stated he has support from several neighbors on Water, Chute, and Kaukauna 
Streets with his ongoing revitalization efforts. 
 

 Preliminary matters:  
 

1. Chairman Galeazzi confirmed with Clerk Neuman that all legal notices were met for an 
Appeal to the Zoning Board of Appeals.  
 

2. Questions from Board Members and responses from the parties, along with general 
discussion regarding: 
a. Housing materials on property’s existing garage structure (Mr. Jacobson replied he 

refrains from using the structure due to repeated break-ins and theft of various 
housing materials and equipment). 

b. Using alternative commercial properties within the vicinity to house container 
c. Establish agreement with nearby commercial industrial property to rent space to 

house supplies in a secure location. 
d. Menasha’s ordinance regarding mobile structures extends beyond shipping 

containers, which alludes to no use of storage of mobile homes, or any sort of 
trailers on a R-1 zoned property within the City of Menasha limits. 

e. Temporary use permits for mobile storage at a commercial property is limited to 
only 90-days (not available for a residential property). 

f. It is the property owner’s responsibility to find out what ordinances are in a 
municipality and what is allowable. 

g. The applicant explained his credibility as a certified contractor. 
 

Chairman Galeazzi pointed out Mr. Jacobson’s perspective of acquiring the shipping 
container and using it at one property, then relocating it to another property given notice 
of noncompliance is an example of how it is easier to ask for forgiveness than 
permission.  
 
CDD Schroeder represented the City of Menasha.  CDD Schroeder commented on the 
reasoning behind deferring the temporary use for a permit of 12-months is because the 
Zoning Board of Appeals has authority to approve said variance for period for up to 12-
months.  Variances (Temporary Use Permit Applications) are required to go in front of the 
Plan Commission; at the Plan Commission meeting on 10/3/23, the Commission 
unanimously consented to deny the approval of the temporary use permit request.  The 
Commission stated the denial will help ensure consistency in following the city 
ordinances and would help deter future options to circumvent the existing ordinance in 
place.  The Plan Commission sided not to provide precedence and promote an 



City of Menasha – Board of Appeals 
October 10, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 
 

ordinance, which helps ensure the city looks aesthetically pleasing in residential 
communities. 

 
Moved by Chairman Galeazzi and seconded by Member Rae-Othrow to uphold the Plan 
Commission’s recommendation to deny the Temporary Use Permit request, as proposed, 
finding the use is not compatible with the surrounding properties, the intent of the 
temporary use permit ordinance and the general purpose of the overall zoning code to 
promote the comfort, health, safety, morals, prosperity, aesthetics and general welfare of 
the people of the City of Menasha. 
Motion carried on roll call 5-0. 

 
F. ADJOURNMENT 

Moved by Member Vander Wyst seconded by Member Rae-Orthow to adjourn at 3:14 
p.m. 
Motion carried on voice vote. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
Valerie Neuman 
City Clerk  
 
 















 
 

City of Menasha ● Department of Community Development 

100 Main Street, Suite 200 ● Menasha, Wisconsin 54952-3151 ● Phone (920) 967-3650 ● 
www.menashawi.gov 

 

 

  

 
To:  Board of Appeals 
 

From: Kristi Heim, Community Development Coordinator 
 

Date: November 1, 2023 
 

RE: Variance Request for Akey Property Management, 338 Nicolet Blvd, Menasha 
 
 

OVERVIEW 
 
Property Address: 338 Nicolet Boulevard 
 

Property Owner: Akey Property Management 
 

Applicant: Akey Property Management, 2485 Schultz Drive, Neenah 
 

Property Zoning: R-1 – Single Family Residence District 
 

Surrounding Zoning:  
North: R-1 – Single Family Residence District 
South: City of Neenah, R-2 – Two Family Residence District 
East: R-1 – Single Family Residence District  
West: I-2 General Industrial District 
 
Variance Requested: Section 13-1-25(f)(13)(a) of the City of Menasha Code of 
Ordinances states “The minimum dimensions for an attached or detached garage shall 
be 22 feet wide and 22 feet deep accessed by a garage door not less than 16 feet wide 
and 7 feet high for a single door, or two doors not less than 9 feet wide and 7 feet high.”  
The applicant is requesting allowance to construct a single family residence with an 
attached garage with the dimensions of 14 feet 6 inches wide and 24 feet 6 inches deep 
accessed by a single garage door 10 feet wide and 8 foot high. 
 
Reason for Variance: Garage size requirement, requesting smaller garage to be allowed. 
 
REGULATIONS FOR GRANTING A VARIANCE 
Per Section 13-1-153(d), the Board of Appeals must find the following five items to be 
true prior to granting a variance:  

1) Hardship to the Property Owner due to Physiographical Considerations 
2) Unique Property Conditions 
3) Not an Exclusive Desire to Increase Property Value or Income 
4) Will not be Detrimental to the Neighborhood 
5) Will not Undermine the Spirit of the Zoning Code 

  



ANALYSIS OF VARIANCE REQUEST 
 
Below is the staff’s analysis of each of the five required items per Section 13-1-153(d) as 
they pertain to the variance requested.  
 

1. Hardship to the Property Owner due to Physiographical Considerations 
 
SEC 13-1-153(D)1: “Denial of variation may result in hardship to the property 
owner due to physiographical consideration. There must be exceptional, 
extraordinary or unusual circumstances or conditions applying to the lot or 
parcel, structure, use or intended use that do not apply generally to other 
properties or uses in the same district and the granting of the variance would not 
be of so general or recurrent nature as to suggest that the Zoning Code should be 
changed.” 
 
ANALYSIS:  This property is zoned R-1 Single Family Residence. In January 2019 a 
fire destroyed the two-family home that previously sat on the lot. The previous 
owner decided not to rebuild the nonconforming structure and therefore this lot 
has been vacant apart from an 11 feet wide and 19 feet long detached garage. 
 
This lot is legal nonconforming meaning it was in existence prior to the City’s 
current zoning code and does not meet the R-1 Single Family Residence District 
lot standards. These standards are outlined in Sec. 13-1-25 R-1 Single Family 
Residence District, relating to minimum lot size and width, required setbacks, 
minimum roof pitch and garage requirements.  
 
The plan submitted by the applicant has been brought forward using the 
prevailing setbacks along both Nicolet Boulevard and Ahnaip Street. As shown in 
the diagram in the packet, these setbacks are greatly reduced due to the triangle 
nature of the of the lot. 
 
It is the staff’s opinion that this uniquely shaped lot poses many obstacles 
relating to the standards outlined in Sec. 13-1-25(f) Standards, of the zoning 
code and without a variance could make constructing a single family residence 
with the garage requirements on this property nearly impossible. 
 

2. Unique Property Conditions 
 
SEC 13-1-153(D)2: The conditions upon which a petition for a variation is based 
are unique to the property for which variation is being sought and that such 
variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial property 
rights possessed by other properties in the same district and same vicinity. 
 
ANALYSIS: There are many unique characteristics to this property. While the 
code requires all new lots within the R-1 zoning district to have a minimum lot 
size of 7,200 sq², this lot is 6,129 sq². The setbacks along Nicolet Boulevard and 



Ahnaip Street were calculated by using the prevailing (most common) as is 
typically done in established neighborhoods where the standard setbacks are not 
present. In a lot shaped as this, this greatly reduced the buildable area. 
 
It is the staff’s opinion that due to overall lot size, shape, and setbacks; this 
property is unique to the variance for which is being applied.  
 

3. Not an Exclusive Desire to Increase Property Value or Income 
 
SEC 13-1-153(D)3: The purpose of the variation is not based exclusively upon a 
desire to increase the value or income potential of the property. 
 
ANALYSIS: Although the construction of a new single family home will increase 
the value of the property, it is also a benefit to the city filling a need for housing 
and generating taxes on a lot that could indefinitely remain vacant.  

 
4. Will Not be Detrimental to the Neighborhood 

SEC 13-1-153(D)4: The granting of the variation will not be detrimental to the 
public welfare or injurious to the other property or improvements in the 
neighborhood in which the property is located. 
 
ANALYSIS: It is the Staff’s opinion that the construction of the new single family 
home will not be detrimental to the neighborhood. 

 
5. Will not Undermine the Spirit of the Zoning Code 

SEC 13-1-153(D)5: The proposed variation will not undermine the spirit and 
general and specific purposes of the Zoning Code. 
 
ANALYSIS:  It is the Staff’s opinion that this variance does not undermine the 
spirit of the zoning which promotes the health, safety, or general welfare of the 
community. By adding a single family residence to a vacant lot, Staff believes this 
meets this intent.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the variance to allow a reduction to the minimum dimensions for 
an attached garage where a new dwelling unit is to be constructed, be approved by 
the Board of Appeals finding that the lot size, lot shape and setbacks are unique to 
this property. Per the analysis presented above, staff deems that the requirements for 
granting a variance have been satisfied. 













 
 

City of Menasha ● Department of Community Development 

100 Main Street, Suite 200 ● Menasha, Wisconsin 54952-3151 ● Phone (920) 967-3650 ● Fax (920) 967-5272 
www.cityofmenasha-wi.gov 

 

 

  

 
To:  Board of Appeals 
 

From: Kristi Heim, Community Development Coordinator 
 

Date: November 1, 2023 
 

RE: Variance Request for St. Timothy Lutheran Church, 473 Seventh St, Menasha 
 
 

OVERVIEW 
 
Property Address: 473 Seventh Street 
 

Property Owner: St. Timothy Lutheran Church 
 

Applicant: Graphic House Inc. 
 

Property Zoning: R-1 – Single Family Residence District 
 

Surrounding Zoning:  
North: R-1 – Single Family Residence District 
South: R-1 – Single Family Residence District 
East: R-1 – Single Family Residence District and R-2 Two-Family Residence District 
West: R-1 – Single Family Residence District 
 
Variance Requested: To allow the replacement of the changeable copy sign with a new 
electronic message center (EMC) to fit into the current sign. 
 
Reason for Variance: To allow the EMC portion of the existing monument sign to exceed 30% 
as allowed by Sec. 13-1-67(d)(4). 
 
REGULATIONS FOR GRANTING A VARIANCE 
 
Per Section 13-1-153(d), the Board of Appeals must find the following five items to be true prior 
to granting a variance:  

1) Hardship to the Property Owner due to Physiographical Considerations 
2) Unique Property Conditions 
3) Not an Exclusive Desire to Increase Property Value or Income 
4) Will not be Detrimental to the Neighborhood 
5) Will not Undermine the Spirit of the Zoning Code 

  



ANALYSIS OF VARIANCE REQUEST 
 
Below is the staff’s analysis of each of the five required items per Section 13-1-153(d) as they 
pertain to the variance.  
 

1. Hardship to the Property Owner due to Physiographical Considerations 
 
SEC 13-1-153(D)1: “Denial of variation may result in hardship to the property owner due 
to physiographical consideration. There must be exceptional, extraordinary or unusual 
circumstances or conditions applying to the lot or parcel, structure, use or intended use 
that do not apply generally to other properties or uses in the same district and the granting 
of the variance would not be of so general or recurrent nature as to suggest that the 
Zoning Code should be changed.” 
 
ANALYSIS:  St. Timothy Lutheran Church is zoned R-1 Single Family Residence and is 
considered a Special Use within the R-1 zoning district. In 2019 a text amendment to 
Title 13, Article F, Section 13-1-67 (d) Electronic Message Centers was approved which 
allows institutional uses within residential districts the opportunity to apply for a sign 
permit to allow EMCs as part of monument signs via special use permit.  
 
Graphic House Inc, on behalf of St Timothy Lutheran Church, applied for a special use 
permit for installation of an EMC as part of their current monument sign replacing the 
existing changeable copy sign. Upon review of the sign, the EMC portion of the sign was 
greater than 30% of total sign face and therefore Graphic House Inc was informed it did 
not meet Sec. 13-1-67(d)(4) which states in part, “Electronic message centers shall be 
integral to and a part of the original approved monument sign and may not comprise 
more than 30% of the sign face…”.  The EMC portion of the proposed sign calculates 
50% of the total sign face. 
 
As outlined in the Zoning Board Handbook for Wisconsin Zoning Boards of Adjustment 
and Appeals, the hardship may not be self-imposed or financial in nature. The applicant 
states if the variance is denied, “the sign structure would have to be modified 
significantly” and “we are trying to avoid major renovation”. Absent a variance, the 
applicant can reduce the size of the EMC portion to bring the sign into compliance and 
therefore have reasonable use of the property. Based on this, it is the staff’s opinion 
that the hardship, as defined, is unfounded. 
 

2. Unique Property Conditions 
 
SEC 13-1-153(D)2: The conditions upon which a petition for a variation is based are 
unique to the property for which variation is being sought and that such variance is 
necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial property rights possessed 
by other properties in the same district and same vicinity. 
 
ANALYSIS: The condition of the existing reader board being retrofitted to be used for the 
EMC portion of the sign does not constitute a unique property condition.  



 
It is the staff’s opinion that the site presents no uniqueness and no site elements that 
diminish the property rights of the owner. 

 
3. Not an Exclusive Desire to Increase Property Value or Income 

 
SEC 13-1-153(D)3: The purpose of the variation is not based exclusively upon a desire to 
increase the value or income potential of the property. 
 
ANALYSIS: This request is not intended to increase the property value or income 
potential of the church.  

 
4. Will Not be Detrimental to the Neighborhood 

SEC 13-1-153(D)4: The granting of the variation will not be detrimental to the public 
welfare or injurious to the other property or improvements in the neighborhood in which 
the property is located. 
 
ANALYSIS: The section of sign code which was revised to allow EMCs for institutional 
uses within residentially zoned districts was amended; however, the total percentage 
the EMC is allowed to occupy on a sign was not. This is to ensure that all signs, no 
matter what district it is located, do not overwhelm pedestrian or vehicular traffic. This 
is especially true within residential neighborhoods. Allowing an EMC over the maximum 
allowable percentage may have a negative impact on the surrounding homes. 
 
If the variance is approved, a special use permit will need to be applied for which 
requires review of specific areas, one being compatibility with adjacent land uses and 
impacts of the neighborhood.  

 
5. Will not Undermine the Spirit of the Zoning Code 

SEC 13-1-153(D)5: The proposed variation will not undermine the spirit and general and 
specific purposes of the Zoning Code. 
 
ANALYSIS:  The purpose of the Zoning Code is to ensure that all properties adhere to the 
established zoning standards for all signs. Allowing variances to these established 
standards undermines the objectives of the zoning code in place.  Seeing that there is no 
special hardship or unique property circumstances, it is Staff’s opinion that this request 
does undermine the spirit of the zoning code. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Per the analysis presented above, staff deems that the requirements for granting a variance 
have not been satisfied. Staff recommends the variance to allow an electronic message center 
to exceed greater than 30% more than the total sign face of an existing monument sign, as 
requested, be denied by the Board of Appeals finding there is no hardship presented, no 
unique property conditions, and that exceeding the maximum allowable size could set a poor 
precedent and undermine the spirit of the ordinance if granted.   


	11-1-23 Agenda
	BOA 10-10-23 Draft Minutes
	PH Notice - 338 Nicolet Blvd
	PH Notice - 473 Seventh Street
	Akey Property Management Variance Application and Memo
	St. Tims Variance  Application and Memo



